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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Public Works Transportation Committee
meeting is now in session. Good morning, Members. Members out in the
audience, at this time, I'd like to introduce the Committee Members. We do have
Member Carroll from Hana, Member Mateo from Molokai, Member Hokama
from Lanai, and my Vice-Chairman Member Molina. Good morning, guys.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
From the Council staff we do have Yvette Bantilan,
Lance Taguchi, and Scott Jensen. Good morning. From the Administration, we
do have with us this morning the Director from Department of Public Works,
Milton Arakawa. Corporation Counsel Cindy Young will be joining us shortly.
Members, we do have a heavy agenda this morning. We have five items. Before
I go into the agenda this morning, I'd like to have public testimony. And for those
of you that are giving public testimony, you do have three minutes to give your
testimony, one minute to conclude, and also if you need more time you can come
back after your first three minutes. At this time, Members, and Members of the
audience, if you could turn off your pagers or cell phones. Turn it off or put it on
the silent mode. Thank you. This morning we do have one person that signed up
for public testimony, Theo Morrison. Ms. Morrison, please .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
MS. MORRISON: Good morning. My name is Theo Morrison. I'm the Executive
Director of LahainaTown Action Committee, and I'm here to support this, I'm not
sure what number it is, the loading zone on Front Street in front of the school.
Welre well aware of the problems that the school has with the children and the
parents coming to pick them up. So this would be a solution to that, to that
problem. Welre real supportive of the, of the school. In general, it's got a difficult
situation now with the town getting so busy and all the buses and all the traffic
and stuff. So, anything we can do to help the school, we would definitely be in
support of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. MORRISON: And in, in regards to loading zones, in general, I did mention this to
Milton that most of the signs, the signs on the loading zones in town are incorrect.
And I've been meaning to bring this to your attention for a while. There, there are
still the same wording that was put up during the Front Street project, which were
made 24-hour loading zone. So they really need to be changed back to what the
law says which we changed about five years ago when we did three hour parking
on Front Street. Itls real important that at night the loading zones become
parking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Morrison. Members, any question for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much. At this time, the Chair would leave the
public testimony open for a few minutes. That would give people from the
audience or outside coming in to testify on any of the other agenda items.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, today we have several items as I say. The
first item on our agenda is Public Works 30, loading zone on Front Street. And
this is a result of County Communication No. 04-234 from the Director of Public
Works transmitting a proposed bill for an ordinance to amend Section 10.48.220,
Maui County Code, pertaining to tow away zones, as well as an ordinance
amending Section 1O.56A.010, Maui County Code, relating to loading zones.
Also, for this first item we do have in our audience the Business Manager from
Kamehameha III School, Bruce Moore as well as Officer Timothy Hodgens from
our Maui Police Department. And if you want to ask them questions in regards to
this particular request you may do so. So, at this time, I'd like to call upon the
Public Works Director.
MR. ARAKAW A: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This item pertains to a proposal
forwarded by the Principal of Kamehameha III School and Lahaina District Police
Officer Hodgens. This would establish a loading zone on the makai side of
Front Street adjacent to Kamehameha III School. Twelve parallel parking stalls
in length as a loading zone during each school day between the hours of 7 a.m. to
8 a.m. and 1 p.m. to 2:30 p.m. each school day. The school informs parents of the
school children to utilize the public parking lot across Front Street to park and
walk their children across Front Street. However, many parents also illegally
drop off their children along Front Street, which causes significant traffic
congestion in the area. The proposed bill is intended to greatly reduce the number
of children crossing Front Street and will make it safer and easier for parents to
park and drop off or pick up their children. The, the Committee's review and
consideration of the proposed bill is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for Public
Works Director? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Yeah.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good morning,
Mr. Director. Just for clarification, currently the signage that's there, you have
three-hour parking beginning at, is it 6 a.m. in the morning?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, I believe so. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, just in terms of the signage if this matter were to be
passed out of Committee today, what adjustments will be made? Because if you
have somebody who happens to park their car there at 6:00 a.m. in the morning
then at 7 o'clock it changes to a five-minute loading zone, how is that going to be
addressed?
.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, obviously, we'd have to go change the signage. And actually
the proposal that you have before you does have some proposed changes to the
signing. I think we have a graphic that shows the proposed change there for, for a
loading zone and the time for the loading zone. So, basically, it would just be a
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loading zone during those hours and the remainder of, of the day would still
remain three-hour parking.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So, for the guy who parks at 6:00 a.m. maybe there's a sign to
indicate that at maybe just one hour parking at that point I guess of the day.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. At this time, the Chair will
recognize Member Johnson. Thank you for joining us this morning. Members,
any more questions? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Director, can you tell me
how this will be enforced?
MR. ARAKAW A: The loading zone, there's a provision, if you look at the last sentence
of the proposed Code change, the loading zone is also looked at as a tow away
zone. So, basically, if people are parking there for a period longer than ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Five minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA:
period.

... allowed then they could be towed away during, during that

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and the individual that will be monitoring this then
would this still be the school crossing guard or is this a Police function?
MR. ARAKA WA: I believe it would be a Police function but you can probably verify
that with the representative from the Police Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And then lastly, Mr. Director, is, is this the solution? Is
this the final solution in dealing with the, the traffic jams with the dropping off
and picking up of youngsters at the Kamehameha the III?
MR. ARAKAWA: I would hope so. There doesn't seem to be a real good solution to
having the pick up and drop off in the public parking lot across the street. And
this would hopefully alleviate some of the pick up and drop off problems in the
morning and the afternoon. The primary problem with the school site of course is
that there's a shortage of onsite parking. So, you know, the school, which is,
which was built many, many years ago just doesn't have enough room to put in
enough parking. So, hopefully this is the, the best solution that that is out there
and it's something that can work for, you know, everyone involved.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, the elimination of the 12 stalls that will be
able to accommodate how many cars waiting in line to pickup?
MR. ARAKAWA: It's, I don't believe those stalls are marked but just by the, the, the
length involved you could fit basically 12 cars that could either drop off and pick
up their school children at anyone time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. And drop off and pick up
means that the child will just be jumping on board and not a stop and wait for the
child to get to the vehicle.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the parents could stop and park there because the loading zone
generally would allow for, I believe, 15 minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I thought this one was five minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, not to exceed five minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm sorry you're correct. Not to exceed five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Thanks,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Arakawa, in regards to the loading
zone, is it similar to the lao Intermediate School on Market Street?
MR. ARAKAWA: I can't recall the exact provisions for lao School. I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I noticed, you know, during the mornings the side
that's on the Administration side of the parking area, the roadway, it's a loading
zone also. So, sometimes I do see parents picking up and dropping off their kids
in the morning and in the afternoon. Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since we don't have designated marked stalls, is it
better, Mr. Director, for us to put a linear footage or yardage instead of say 12,
instead of saying 12 parking stalls in length?
MR. ARAKAWA: Hmm.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just, I'm just wondering, you know, Mr. Arakawa.
What would be better for enforcement as well as understanding of what is
permissible or not permissible?
MR. ARAKAWA: We can certainly do that. I think that would clarify it and make it
more specific. I mean I don't know the exact length right now but I can certainly
provide that to the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, it's just a suggestion, Mr. Arakawa.
Again, I'm assuming that the Department with the school reviewed the possibility
whether or not the, the side, the one way side street that's next to the banyan tree
park area that would not be a suitable site because we also have street parking
there. And, and I'm assuming again that you folks did review that option and
found that not to be your top recommendation to this Committee. Would that be
correct?
MR. ARAKAW A: That's correct. I believe you're talking about some angle parking
stalls that are adjacent to Canal Street.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that Canal Street?
MR. ARAKAWA: And those stalls apparently are within the school's property and they
back out directly onto the, the roadway.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. ARAKAW A: But it's an existing nonconforming situation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One of our better phrases. Just, just another one,
Mr. Director. Is there any concern about right-of-ways or entry/exits across
mauka side of Front Street that we need to be concerned about? I just ask that
because, you know, people will be innovative in how to do their left turns if
they're in a rush or something to try and make use of the drop-offs. Does it
become a traffic concern for us?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, I think it actually helps over the existing situation because
what, what happens now is that people either go in the parking lot or because they
have existing cars that are already parallel parked there, they'll simply stop and
drop off or pick up their children in the vehicular travel lane, which, you know,
slows up the traffic flow behind them. So, with the, the designation of the loading
zone, people can pull off onto these parallel parking stalls, do their loading and
unloading and still have the vehicular flow going by on Front Street. In addition,
this hopefully will take care of most of the pick up and drop off so that there'll be
less of a need for parents to park within the public parking lot across Front Street.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. I was wondering if you would,
well, Chairman, maybe this would be for you. Maybe we need to ask for some
comments either by the Department or the Traffic Safety Committee. I think that
Mister, I'm not sure if Mr. Dang is still the Chair of that Committee to maybe give
us a report like December, end of the year, calendar year whereby we can find out
if it works well for our students at Kamehameha III and allow the, the school to
work on something during the, back to, course of the school, school use during
the fall term.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. We'll send a letter to Mr. Dang and
request that information from him.
.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, no, I was just asking when it's
appropriate I'd like to have a representative from the school as well as the Police
Department for questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. At this time, if both, Mr. Moore and Officer Hodgens,
could you come down please. Officer Hodgens and Mr. Moore, can you come up
forward? Make yourself comfortable because I know you guys going get lot of
questions.
OFFICER HODGENS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
OFFICER HODGENS: To start off with what you brought up earlier lao School that's
how I got the idea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
OFFICER HODGENS: I actually photographed the lao School sign.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Good morning, Chairman. And good morning,
Officer Hodgens and Mr. Moore. I guess I'll start off first with Mr. Moore from
the school. Currently, Kamehameha III School that goes from Kindergarten to, is
it third grade?
MR. MOORE: No, sir, fifth grade.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Fifth grade. Okay. Do you have parents that prefer walking
their children? You know they'll, they'll park, you know, they'll want to
preferably walk their younger children. Especially I know kindergarteners and
first graders who may be a little uncomfortable.
MR. MOORE: Well, presently we do have that issue and quite of few of 'em will go in
across the street near the abandoned cottages down the way and cross where
there's not a marked crossing area and they'll come across to the cattle gates
which is posing a safety issue. And there are times when the parents will just
park and watch the kids cross the street, which is quite dangerous.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And your school crossing guards, on that subject, if this
proposal is passed will they be assisting the Police Department as far as enforcing
this as well? I don't know what the staffing is for the Police Department is to I
guess constantly enforce or monitor the situation but will your guards also I guess
do their part to help?
MR. MOORE: The guards and staff would assist. What the idea was from the Principal
and Vice-Principal was if this does pass, we'd be sending out a memo to the
parents that this area would be available to drop kids off and only to drop them off
not to exit the car and walk them onto the grounds but they can watch 'em right
there. There are gates at that particular area that would start to be opened up in
the morning for the kids to walk directly to their building so the parents would
feel safe just watching them go directly to the classroom. Also, at, at that point,
there's, beyond that point there's an area where the cars do come up where the
teachers and the principals do park and that's causing a congested area there. So,
those cars would be able to advance, drop the kids off, and then exit. And the
Vice-Principal, Principal, or, or myself, I work for the complex, but we'd make
ourselves available while the parents are starting to do this so they'd, they'd follow
the procedure of just dropping and exiting.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Great. The parents need as much education as the kids as well
in a matter like this. Thank you. Chairman, can I ask the Police Department one
more question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning, Officer Hodgens.
OFFICER HODGENS: Good morning, sir.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: In terms of staffing, currently, as it is during the school year is
the Police Department or a representative out there everyday to help assist with
the traffic situation there?
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OFFICER HODGENS: Yes, that's my full-time job. I'm the, I'm the three-wheeler. It's
kind of what Officer Taguma does here.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay.
OFFICER HODGENS: I do that in Lahaina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Good. And I bring that up because I'm from Makawao
and I know I drive by Kalama Intermediate School on a daily basis and during the
school year there's a sign out there that directly tells parents not to drop their kids
off right in front of the school off of Makani Road, which is a very busy road.
And, you know, to be honest with you, I don't know, my, my concern was more
staffing and if there's somebody out there to monitor it. So, I'm glad to hear
that ...
OFFICER HODGENS: I work Monday through Friday and seeing, I've been, had this
position now for about four years now and the school is getting worse and worse.
And with the cruise ship around the comer, the buses can't make the comer as it's
getting real congested. And then Mr. Kaniho who's our crossing guard, he's
getting pretty old. So, I was kind of worried what's going to happen with all the
kids running across the street. So, we're trying to resolve a problem now to make
it safer before somebody gets hurt.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more questions?
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much for bringing this issue
forward. One of the things I think you and I had spoken about this also is that do
any of the, like let's say for example, the Episcopal Church and they have their
little preschool in the area, have any of the other businesses 'cause I know there's
a couple of surf schools in that area, have they expressed any concerns or any
thing of that sort?
OFFICER HODGENS: Well, I spoke to Episcopal Church because I do a lot of the
teaching over there with the kids. They only got about 30 students and they're,
the parents would love it because they can pull in easier ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
OFFICER HODGENS: .. , and they can also use it. So, it's not just for the Kam III
students if they need to pull in but mostly they use their own parking lot. They
pull in all the way in back into the pastor's cottage, drop off then they exit.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And, and also, with regard to I think the
question that was asked earlier too about, you know, the timing can sometimes
particularly if we have visitors 'cause a lot of the visitors park in that area. I know
we have some other time restrictions for parking in other areas throughout that
whole region. Do you think there's going to be any difficulty when it comes to
actually getting people to not park in that area? Will the, initially, I think we've
coned off in other areas to kind of attract attention and maybe put signage. How
do you plan to transition this so that people won't get stuck with their cars either
being towed or ticketed?
OFFICER HODGES: Hopefully, I photographed this sign we have in front of lao School
like he mentioned earlier. That's where I kind of got the idea because I used to
live in that area and it works great. And kind of like we have on Canal Street it's
one-hour parking then it says except on school days. So, we can do a sign like
this and then put except on school days where it will return into a three-hour
parking. So, people who do go over to the area and park after 2:30 and 3:00 p.m.
will know it's a three-hour parking zone.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then ...
OFFICER HODGES: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... would you plan then or would the school plan on
having actual cars towed, you know, at that point or is there no plan for towing?
OFFICER HODGES: We'll probably start off just do the warning, issue citations.
Because right now what's happening is in front of Kam III School there's about 30
parallel stalls for the faculty members. And what's happening is the parents are
pulling in, double-parking, exiting their vehicle, and the teachers when they need
to leave they're blocked in.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
OFFICER HODGES: So, we're going to try and train all the parents to start using the
loading zone here to pull in, drop off. But the parents that need to go inside and
do school business they can continue to park across the street or whatnot. This is
just, I was talking to Mr. Moore and the Principal, they're going to be opening the
gates. I passed the photographs around. The students can hang out on campus,
mom pulls up taps the horn, the kids can come, just cross the sidewalk and jump
in. Because it's kind of what they're doing right now illegally in front of the
teacher stalls. They're, they're running out real quick, jumping in so.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm, I'm really grateful for that. And, Mr. Chair, I had
one question too for Mr. Moore. Thank you very much for coming and, you
know, continuing on with this 'cause I notice this is ...
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MR. MOORE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... you know, not signed by you but, you know, by
your predecessor I believe. I think that's how long it's been, well, I guess it's
actually signed by Milton. Anyway, what my question is would be in regard to
the, the parents themselves. Have the parents expressed support for this through
Parent Teachers Association or has it been discussed with them?
MR. MOORE: Yes. The parents have expressed a concern and they've talked with the
Safety Committee and members of staff about the shortage of parking or dropping
off, the concerns of dropping off the kids in the morning and the congestion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, they're very supportive of this.
MR. MOORE: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I'm, I'm just really grateful for that because I
think it is really a safety issue at this point. Now, when eventually the County lot
on the other side, and this may be to Mr. Arakawa, the County lot which is where
the two Ing homes are currently across from the Episcopal Church. When those
are eventually flattened and that area expands to more parking, would this
solution be something that you would see as long term and then that parking space
would just be open for regular public parking or would you see some type of other
option with pick up and drop off with regard to the public parking lot?
MR. ARAKA W A: I guess at this point I would just take more of a wait and see type of
attitude. The proposal before you would definitely improve what's existing but
whether it takes care of the entire problem, I guess that's open to question at this
point.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I am happy our officer is here this morning,
Mr. Chair. He showed us a photograph of lao and, you know, I just passed there
this morning coming here and it was I believe 1 :00 to 3:00, 3:00 p.m.
OFFICER HODGES: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. The bill is proposing 1:00 to 2:30. Is there a
need for us not to have consistency in our application of similar types of
considerations, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We could consider ...
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Again, you know, I'm not too sure but, you know, I
would like us to try and be consistent in how we, if we're going to do schools,
school loading, drop off zones, I would like us to try and make it consistent. That
if regardless of what school unless there's a special situation we are not aware of.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa, you want to answer that?
MR. ARAKAWA: I would prefer to get some comments from the people who actually
are more familiar with it. Either the school representative or the community
police officer to see what the actual situation is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Officer Hodgens.
OFFICER HODGENS: I'd myself prefer the 3:00 p.m. one like lao School that way
because after school a lot of parents work and, and they usually don't come until
like 2:30 or so. Because everyday I monitor the school with the crossing guard
and we usually don't leave 'til 2:30 p.m. anyways. So, 3:00 p.m. would be fine
with me I mean.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Moore.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One, one question for the officer, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The 1 p.m. is for the so-called Wednesday's program
that when they leave earlier, Officer?
OFFICER HODGENS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Moore.
MR. MOORE: I'm unclear on what's presently taking place at the other schools. If it
could be explained. Is it, are you thinking having just particular like a couple
hours in the morning for loading, dropping off and loading and then the people
are allowed to park afterwards and then again from 1 to 3 they're allowed ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's how the legislation is being proposed. But I'm
more concerned about consistent application regardless of school. You know I
may, I may, I don't have but those who may have children, you know, I would
like them to know regardless of whether it's lao School, Kamehameha III School
it's 1 to 3 p.m. in the afternoon for loading and unloading. And not get into this
technicality, well, that's only for lao School and to 3 o'clock. If you're in
Kamehameha too bad it's 2:30 and that's when it ends.
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MR. MOORE: That makes sense to keep it uniform.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, I just wanted to, yeah, have more consistency in
application of our, our laws, Chairman.
MR. MOORE: In this present situation, if I might, the, the parking signs where the
teachers are parking right now and what the VP and I had discussed was we were
hoping that the signs would be consistent straight down the way too from 6:30 to
4:30 no parking. And my concern is with this if, if you 1re having split parking
and, and a temporary time allows to, to park there during school hours, I think
what1s going to happen is once in a while people are going to park and not be able
to make it back in time. I mean if, if tourists are here and they see the sign and
they get held up some place down the way for whatever reason in a restaurant or
whatever, it's going to pose an issue for them to, to have that area clear anyways.
If it1s just consistently clear during school hours is what the school was really
hoping for.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would ask you ask your Department to support you
in that kind of funding to make those things happen.
MR. MOORE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would ask that you ask your State Department to
assist you in that type of endeavors.
MR. MOORE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Moore, just for curiosity 1s sake.
The, is the school student population-wise is it at this point maxed out or, and
what kind of growth do you foresee in the area? And roughly about do you know
off-hand how much percent of your students use the bus versus those who are
driven to school?
MR. MOORE: Approximately, right now, 400 students are using the bus and, and 300
are, are dropped off. We have, we 1re at about 700. We are beyond capacity. As
you remember last year a portable came in. There was issues with students
outside. There was a big issue there. We 1re waiting on a portable presently to be
assigned to us again. So, we 1re beyond capacity at that school.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And I, I bring it up because there may be. .. (CHANGE
TAPE) . .. projects coming up in the area and as the school grows and, you know,
if this is the, I don't know I guess at this point we're looking at it more as an
interim solution at this point here. So, okay, I thank you for sharing that
information with us.
MR. MOORE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. There was one additional question too because
and I don't know if Milton or you, Mr. Moore, would be able to answer this. The
crossing guards are actually paid for out of County funding but are they
employees of the County or are they employees of the Department of Education
or are they under contract to the school? I'm not sure how that works, but I know
that we pay for them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Council member Johnson, that's my understanding too but I believe
that contract is administered by the Police Department.
So, maybe
Officer Hodgens can, can provide more information on that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If you could I'll really appreciate it because I'm not
sure how that all works.
OFFICER HODGENS: Usually, Sergeant Barry Aoki through our Traffic Division he
handles all the crossing guards to the schools. Gets the contracts signed and so
forth so that's through the Police Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, it is a contract administered and issued
through your Department?
OFFICER HODGENS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then is there any type of training or
anything that these crossing guards go through?
OFFICER HODGENS: Sergeant Aoki handles all that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Officer Hodgens as well as
Mr. Moore? If not, thank you very much.
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MR. MOORE: I'd like to say thank you for the Council to take the time to hear us. I
appreciate it.
OFFICER HODGENS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I get one question for Mr. Moore. I'm sorry. Quick one. The
school name is it Kamehameha the III or King Kamehameha the III Elementary
School?
MR. MOORE: King Kamehameha the III Elementary School.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, at this time, the Chair would want to
call a short recess. A couple of minutes ... (gavel) ...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:39 a.m.
9:43 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, are you ready? The Public Works and
Transportation meeting is reconvened. .,. (gavel) . .. Members, before the Chair
gives his recommendation, I'd like the Public Works to explain the amendments
that are before this Committee in regards to 10.56A.OIO which is loading zone,
and 10.48.220 Tow A way Zone. Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKA WA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The original proposal, which we submitted to
this Committee proposed an amendment to the tow away zone section of the
Code. And we subsequently submitted a new bill, which proposed basically a
similar Code amendment to the loading zone section of the Code because we felt
that was more appropriate. We did add the last sentence. If you notice the last
sentence of our second amendment it says "this loading zone shall be a tow away
zone during the hours designated for the loading and unloading of passengers".
And we just wanted to make it clear that that sentence, that last sentence was put
in primarily for enforcement purposes. But we felt it was more appropriate to be
placed in the loading zone section of the Code rather than the tow away zone
section of the Code. So, our proposal would basically be to, for, to have the
Committee recommend passage of the, the loading zone amendment that we have
before you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Corporation Counsel, comments on that.
MS. YOUNG: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess the legal question would be
whether or not having a tow away zone section in the Code would preclude,
would preclude Council from passing the bill which establishes both a loading
zone and tow away provisions in, in this area described in the bill. And in various
other instances there have been tow away provisions provided in the loading zone
and, and actually vice-versa where there's loading zone provisions in a tow away
zone. And, and there are just for clarification also instances where the tow away
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provision and the loading zone provision are actually separate in the same, for the
same location. So, it's done, it's been done all three ways. We think legally, from
a legal perspective that all three are, are legally appropriate but we would concur,
we, we had some discussion with Public Works and, and I think that the, the
consensus was that because the primary purpose of this, of this bill would be for
the, for the drop off and pick up of students that loading zone seems more
appropriate in this instance and that the tow away provision is more for
enforcement purposes. So, from a legal perspective this is okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Chairman, are you recommending both, both
sections of the Code or just one at this time?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just one at this time, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, are we working off the March 7, 2005,
communication from Director Arakawa?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we are.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. At this time, the Chair would like to
recommend that we approve Item Number, PW-30, No.2, "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 10.56A.01O MAUl COUNTY CODE,
RELATING TO LOADING ZONES".
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Molina followed by Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll be supporting the proposal and
I guess anything we can do to enhance the safety of our kids is definitely needed.
And I would ask the Police Department and the school to, you know, should this
legislation pass to get the word out as soon as possible because you have parents
out there in spite of laws that are, you know, there to protect our kids constantly
try to break the law out of the sake of convenience. So, I think it will be real
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important that we get the word out. And unfortunately there may be some parents
in which examples have to be made of but I would only ask that. And I think with
the, I guess a report at the end of the year suggested by Member Hokama I think
will help us to determine whether this is the appropriate solution or if we need to
look at other measures to improve the situation out there. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Just for clarification. The
ordinance itself refers to the school as Kamehameha the III, are we going to make
that correction to indicate the actual name of the school in, in all references that
currently exist in the ordinance?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Mateo. The Chair would
recommend, would recommend that we amend ... the school that is written in the
ordinance from Kamehameha the III School to King Kamehameha the III
Elementary School. If you care to make the motion I'll ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo. Members, any discussion? Thank
you very much. All in favor of the motion say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

VOTE:

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
None.
APPROVE amendment to main motion (replace school name to
King Kamehameha the III Elementary School)

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. One more item for clarification.
At this particular point, are we looking at the language relative to the unloading
period, loading/unloading period in the afternoon? Are we still looking at
2:30 p.m. or as Mr. Hokama referenced earlier consistency in language to
3:00 p.m.?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would recommend 1:00 p.m. to
3:00 p.m. If you care to make a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Carroll, second by Member Molina.
Members, any discussion? All in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

APPROVE amendment to main motion (the effective hours of the
loading zone be between 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion. Members, any more discussion on
the main motion? If not, all in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Motion passes.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
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MR. T AGUCHI: Will you be filing the communication?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
objections?

Yeah.

And filing of the communication if there's no

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmemher Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

FIRST reading of revised hill relating to loading zones; and
FILING of communication

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are you filing that communication also that has the
10.48 attachment? We just dealing with 10.56?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have two ordinances with two different parts of
the Code.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the two ordinances were there because basically
there's two sections. One in tow away, one in loading. I think Corporation
Counsel has suggested that we just place the ordinance that relates to loading
zones would be sufficient and not the tow away. So, the first bill that was referred
to the Committee should be filed.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand the logic but, you know, we have people
who sometimes just look at one portion of the Code assuming that that is the only
area and then we get confusion. So, I would hope we make it very clear. And my
other example to just share that, you know, with this type of potential
misunderstanding of our intention is how we do some amendments to zoning.
Okay. Project District has specific language in project district ordinances of how

PW06127105

Page 20

to amend and yet we have had applicants in the past use a change of zoning
process to make adjustments in project district ordinances. So, again, you know,
you know, we create the confusion by allowing different sections of the Code to
just have some language or some, some component to address a concern and then
we place it in others. And instead of us making the appropriate repealing of, of
things we don't need anymore, we continue to have them exist on the Code and
then we get into this area of gray and confusion of what section is the ruling
authority for enforcement and existence of the law. So, I just bring that up 'cause
I've had to deal with my major concerns of conflicting parts of the Code.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I, I think that Riki makes a very good point and
what maybe helpful is that the subject of the consistency and maybe a
recommendation from you as Chair and the Committee that perhaps in looking at
the subdivision ordinances or looking at how the uniformity is achieved that
perhaps that be given as some type of a PAF. So that there's a method whereby
we're consistent and that maybe it requires amendment in both sections. Because
then that way if somebody has any doubt at least that way they would be able to
check both sections and find that there is consistency. And then that kind of
policy be adopted. So, I think it would be really important to perhaps raise the
issue, do a P AF, and then take if from there. But at least take the advice that has
been recommended and deal with it that way. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Yeah, what Member Hokama
had just mentioned and also you, yeah, we should be looking at consistency and
we'll follow up on that. Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Chairman, quickly, yeah, if I may?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe I can ask Mr. Raatz as your attorney assigned
to your Committee and possibly with Ms. Young that you might just want to
please consider, have some discussion with them and maybe at the appropriate
time, at Council to see whether or not an amendment of language such as that this
will, this legislation shall take priority or shall supercede all previous legislation
enacted. So that it's very clear that, you know, even if you bring up another part
of the Code that this legislation which we put dates in our, in our Code will show
that it has I guess higher standing or is the only one with standing for application.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Corporation Counsel and Staff, if
you could work on that. Thank you. Any more questions, Members?

16

DEDICATION OF ROADWAY LOTS, DRAINAGE LOT, AND
DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS
FOR
ALI'I
VILLAGE
SUBDIVISION (KIHEI) (C.c. No. 05-153)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, next on the agenda is Public Works 16,
which is dedication of roadway lots, drainage lot, and drainage easements for Ali'i
Village Subdivision. The first resolution is accepting dedication of roadway lots
for the Ali'i Village Subdivision pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code.
The second resolution is accepting dedication of a drainage lot for the Ali'i
Village Subdivision pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code. And third,
accepting dedication of easements pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County
Code. At this time, the Chair would like to call on Public Works Director
Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you've noted this item pertains to three
separate but related items for the Ali'i Village Subdivision, which is located at the
corner of Kulanihakoi Street and the future north-south collector road in Kihei.
The first is a dedication of roadway lots 28 and 29 for Waikalani Place and
Hakoi Hema Place respectively within the Ali'i Village Subdivision. Both of
these lots are cul-de-sacs, which provide access to the lots within the residential
subdivision. And each lot total 17,068 square feet. The second item pertains to a
proposed dedication of a drainage lot for the Ali'i Village Subdivision. This
drainage lot which is designated as a lot, as lot 31 totals 52,841 square feet and is
located on the south side or the Wailea side of this subdivision. This drainage lot
contains a rock lined grass bottom swale, a parallel paved maintenance road, and
it is also fenced on both sides. And the third item pertains to a proposed
dedication of two drainage easements. And there's an easement D-l which is
1,358 square feet. While easement D-2 is 1,591 square feet in area. These
easements are 15 feet in width and each is located near the end of each cul-de-sac.
So, the function of the easement is to collect runoff from the end of the cul-de-sac
and convey it via a drainline to a retention basin, which is located at the makai
stem of the property. This subdivision was granted final approval back in
September of 2004 and all of the improvements are complete and approved by our
Department and the Department of Water Supply. So, the Committee's review
and consideration of the proposed resolutions is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Mr. Mateo.

Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

Questions for the Director?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa,
the approval process, can you tell me what the Department go through prior to
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coming up with this recommendation to Council in so far as reviewing the
subdivision and the, the need to dedicate the roadway? What does, what steps the
Department look at before reaching this point where you're before us asking us to
approve this dedication?
MR. ARAKA WA:
dedications?

I assume your question refers to all three of these proposed

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. ARAKAW A: Basically, what would be involved is as far as the roadway lots, you
know, we would check and do an inspection as to whether or not the roadways
have been built in accord with applicable County standards. In the case of the
drainage lot and the easements, we specify specific improvements, which would
need to be made prior to this dedication being presented to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the, those steps that is in conjunction with say the
Water Department also taking a look at their criteria for requirement as well?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. The, the Water Department has looked at it. They have put in
the applicable water lines within the, the subdivision to provide service to the lots.
So, they have signed off on it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. So, to Corp Counsel then if this is a
process that is primarily administrative in scope then why is a legislative body
having to deal with dedication of properties especially when in form of resolution
pursuant to Maui County Code Section 3.44.01S(C) references the word "may"?
This is not a directive. This is we may accept dedication. So, can you kind of
like help me understand why roadway dedication such as this comes before the
legislative body? Because this will, this will, you know, my same questions will
go towards the other dedications that we also going be reviewing today as well.
Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for that question, Mr. Mateo. The
only dedications currently that Council does not look at for the most part is
conveyances of real property for certain purposes, water source, tank lots,
et cetera that fit within Subsection D. It's actually Section 3.44.01S(C), I'm sorry,
D. And if the dedication fits within that Section it would not come before
Council. Aside from that, every other conveyance of real property or in the
interest in real property including licenses and easements and the like would come
before Council because they're required to by law, by the Code. And also, to, to
answer your question with respect to particularly roadway type lots. Section
264-l(c)(1) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes requires that and I'll just read the
relevant language "all roads, alleys, streets, ways, lanes, trails, bikeways, and
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bridges in the State, opened, laid out, or built by private parties and dedicated or
surrendered to public, to the public use, and declared to be pubic highways or
public trails as follows." And this is in particular it says in the case of a County
highway or County trail the deed shall be delivered to and accepted by the
legislative body of a county .. So, the State law requires that in order for a private
developer to, for example, in this case, to convey a road widening lot or roadway
lot to the County, it has to come to Council to get approved. And in this case, it
would be approved by resolution. So, so, in order for us to not have it come to
Council, it would have, it would require an amendment to the, to the State Statute.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, thank you very much. So, the existing resolution
with the, with the, the word "may" then is not really a directive. It's just
something that you can do because it's not, it's not a "shall". You know what I'm
saying? It does not read the County Council shall accept. And then my question
would be then what happens if we don't?
MS. YOUNG: Well, that, that is correct that the term "may" means that, obviously, that
Council has discretion in order to accept or not accept an interest in real property.
In the case of roadway lots... (short pause). .. 1 believe and I'm sorry I can't cite
the particular section to you, but I believe that there's a section in Hawaii Revised
Statutes that requires the County to accept roadway lots or road widening lots so
long as they're to standards and then there would be very little if any discretion for
those types of lots because they are subdivision requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, based on HRS then we virtually have no option
other than accept the recommendation of the Department and accept these
dedicated areas.
MS. YOUNG: Right. For, for roadway or roadway widening lots.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, for roadway and roadway widening lots, the
resolution, the verbiage got to be real specific then and, and changed to the
Council shall accept?
MS. YOUNG: Well, when you ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because I don't know what the flexibility is.
MS. YOUNG: When we, when we cite that language we're actually quoting directly
from the Code where the Council may accept. I guess the discretion really would
be if there's any flexibility in whether or not it meets standards, and that's open.
And, and so that's why we would still say that it's better to put in "may" because
that that area is open to discussion I think whether or not a particular lot meets
the, or, or improvements meets the standards of, of the County.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, the County Code would allow us that
flexibility to have the discussion and the State HRS tells us you've got to accept it.
MS. YOUNG: Yes, I think both though would, would allow the flexibility to have that
discussion of whether or not a particular dedication meets the, meets the
appropriate standards.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, Corp Counsel sees this whole process as not
a, not an, not an administrative responsibility to accept but the legislative
responsibility to accept dedication.
MS. YOUNG: Yes, that's correct because we have both the HRS provisions and the
Code provisions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I appreciate this discussion because I've often
had the same question. So, one of the things though that I would like to find out
is with regard to, and in this case it would be the actual acceptance of the drainage
area itself. Because, you know, granted 52,000 square feet isn't huge but it's a
pretty big area. What liabilities are we assuming? What responsibilities as far as
maintenance? What costs are involved with this? Because, obviously, if it
becomes ours, let's say somebody dumps a car on it or somebody falls and injures
themselves, what are our duties and responsibilities? And is there any mechanism
if we just assume all the cost and maintenance and responsibilities, is there any
way that we could require the area to actually be privately maintained for the
public benefit? Is that possible?
MR. ARAKAWA: Council member Johnson, excuse me, generally, with regard to
drainage, well, let me back up, in particular, in this particular case, the drainage
lot that we're asking the Council to consider for dedication is a lot which would
route the offsite flows through the development. So, what the developer is
proposing to do is basically as a result of their subdivision there's going to be an
increase in runoff and they are accommodating that increase on their property via
a retention basin. And so, basically, they're, that that lot would accommodate the
offsite flows. So that's why because it deals with more of an area wide or regional
concern it's something that we think it will be fair for the County to assume
responsibility. But in order for us to do so we have asked for certain construction
standards being met and also that there be a maintenance road so that our crews
can go in and, and maintain the basin, I mean, excuse me, maintain that, that
swale.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In, in terms of the actual cost that this would run I
guess on an annualized basis, what would be a ballpark figure as to the cost?
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MR. ARAKAWA: I really couldn't tell you that right off hand. But it would be adding
to the responsibilities of our Highways Division as far as maintenance. I don't
believe that it would be resulting in any, any increase in personnel that will be
needed as a result of this particular dedication per se but it does add to the
responsibilities. So, it, it could, you know, if there are many of these lots that are
being added over time then it would have an impact on our staffing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and, Mr. Chair, the reason I ask this is because,
you know, even though this is one small little area and one small little drainage
lot, the cumulative impacts of all of these, you know, and they're all tied to the
development of the lands in the area. I realize that not all of the drainage is
coming just from this subdivision. Some of it may, if there's a storm event, it may
come off.. .(CHANGE TAPE) . .. kind of a regional thing, but I really think at
some point we need to have some kind of mechanism or analysis done so that we
look at if there's a cumulative impact that there be some way that we can assess
what that impact is and let the taxpayers know, alright this is what you're picking
up the tab for. Because it's not going to be free and these small costs add up to
big costs in the end. And if the tax base is sufficient from the development of the
property to cover the increase in this cost then I think we need to have that
information. So that when we consider these items in Budget and when Public
Works comes forward that we're able to look at the actual impact of this particular
development because obviously, you know, it hasn't been dedicated before so
there was no cost to the County. Who was picking up the tab and how is it being
dealt with? So, I'm just looking at it in maybe a little bit broader picture. But I
would really like in some point in time to have this Committee consider some
type of review or analysis or I guess look at what, how many of these easements
we've taken over time; how much is it really costing us. So, we look at the cost
benefit and analysis. And if the taxes are sufficient, fine. If it's not sufficient then
we need to start looking also at impact fees, you know, for this area as well.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any more questions
for the Director? I do have one. Mr. Arakawa, are this dedication time sensitive
or can it be done like say on a monthly or quarterly basis just to save our time in
regards to dedications?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, generally, these things are, are, are forwarded to the
Council as they're, they're ready to be considered. In many cases, and in this
particular case, they've already gone through the discretionary permit approvals.
They've gotten their, they did an Environmental Assessment. They did an Special
Management Area Permit. They've gotten their approvals and now they're in this
construction stage. So, from, from my standpoint, you know, I'd prefer to wrap it
up on a timely basis if, if at all possible.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina, question.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Question for Corporation Counsel.
Accepting of drainage easements is not a requirement like that of accepting
road-widening lots or anything of that nature? It's just pretty much at the
discretion of the Council. We're not required or mandated by the State. Is that
correct?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Molina, that is correct.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Chair, is there, was there a
representative from the, I guess the Company asked to come? Seeing that I guess
it seems to have spurred some concerns or issues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. At this time, I don't see any representative from the
development. Mr. Arakawa, if you have any information.
MR. ARAKAWA: Maybe I can just clarify what our, our general policy is. Generally,
if, if a developer comes before us and they are putting in drain lines within a
roadway and they intend to dedicate that roadway to the County, then it would be
our maintenance responsibility should the Council accept the dedication of the
drain line within the roadway. However, if there are drain lines or easements that
are on private property within the development itself, we would try to have those
be taken care of by the, the developer or the association. For instance, a big
expense that could come up is retention basins or detention basins that are built by
the developer. And generally, we've told people that, developers that come in
before our Department that those should be privately maintained because the
intent of those are basically to take care of the increase in runoff that's due to the
development itself. If there are regional flows, area flows that flow through the
development that's where we would consider dedication of those either drainage
courses or other drainage improvements dedication by the County. Because, you
know, they, they will take care of other offsite flows that are not solely the
responsibility of the developer itself. So, that's a general approach that we have
taken and I think what we have, what you have before you today is, is consistent
with that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director, has the area had, you know, a history of flooding
I mean in this particular site?
MR. ARAKAWA: In, in this particular case, as you know Kihei is, is a fairly low-lying
area. There are some major drainage courses that flow through the area. And
since it was built up a number of years ago, there are a number of inadequacies as
far as the existing drainage system. And that's why we, we are embarking on the
Kihei drainage master plan to update that. This particular drainage area where
this project is located is adequate, however, on either side their major drainage
courses where the, the drainage system is, is not. And so, you know, once the
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drainage master plan is done it will give us some better clues as to how to address
these types of regional issues.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Milton brings up, you know, a very good point about
looking at the regional impacts. And I know that we have another situation where
a development was built, the drainage was inadequate, and now the County is
having to spend a whole bunch of money in order to improve or at least to prevent
that area from re-flooding.
My concern, Mr. Chair, is about again even though it might not be attributable
directly to this drainage, you know, area, if there is a storm event and there's a
commingling of all of these drainage areas coming together and it can't be
conclusively determined where the runoff is coming from and the cumulative
impacts of all these things. You know, my concern always in accepting drainage
areas is where is the liability, where's the protection for the taxpayer? Because
now when we assume ownership of a piece of property that serves a purpose for
drainage, whenever there's an issue, guess who gets sued? So, my other question
would then be to Corporation Counsel. What protection is there within this
acceptance that protects the taxpayers if God forbid there is a storm event and
there's litigation that ensues? Is there any policy or is there any hold harmless
agreement or any representation that the people that are dedicating this lot to us
also assume some kind of responsibility on a shared basis? To say, hey, look
we're giving you this property and we know that there may be some issues
therefore we'll execute a hold harmless agreement that protects the County in the
event some kind of litigation should ensue.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We could, what we could do in the case of the
drainage easements is we could put in an indemnification clause. We could also
pair that, usually what we do is we pair that with insurance provision because
indemnification is only as good as the person or company indemnifying you. So,
we could put in a requirement of insurance if that is the, you know, if that's what
Council would like to see in this drainage easement. I think the typical insurance
amount is a million dollars but we can check with the Risk Manage ... , Risk
Manager and he can give us an appropriate amount to put into this drainage
easement.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I think, you know ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... because I'm not a member of the Committee, my
wish would be that this particular issue, you know, with regard to this one area of
land acceptance be separated from the other things. I, I personally don't have a
problem with the other elements but I think we've got to look at some type of an
arrangement whereby we do have insurance that, that is adequate in proportion to
the amount of risk that we're assuming. And I do appreciate Corporation Counsel
at least having our Risk Manager take a look at that because I think it's important
when we're accepting something, you know, the risks go along with it as well as
the potential benefit. So, I would just ask that only this portion be deferred.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any more questions?
If not, at this time, the Chair would like to recommend that we accept the
proposed resolutions accepting dedication of roadway lots for the Ali'i Village
Subdivision, pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code, as well as
accepting dedication of a drainage lot for the Ali'i Village Subdivision pursuant to
Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code, and the accepting of the dedication of
easement pursuant to Section, Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Second by Member Molina. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, you filing?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And the filing of the communication.
discussion, Members? Member Molina.

Thank you.

Any

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I would ask that for the second reso ... ,
I assume this, we're approving, or the motion on the floor is for all three
resolutions.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: All three resolutions, yes.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I would ask that consideration be given for resolution
number 2 with regards to adding language as recommended by Corporation
Counsel to alleviate some concerns with the regards to the drainage lots and the
potential cost over the long term to the County. I believe we should take a little
harder look when it comes to accepting dedication of drainage lots and anything
else related. So, I would ask that consideration be given for that type of language
to be considered for resolution number 2. For first and third resolutions I have no
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problems, but the second resolution I would like to see some type of language
incorporated in there. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Member Molina,
if you want to add language ...
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: That would be an amendment ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: '" to item number, resolution number 2.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I don't know what's the best way to frame it but I guess
to I guess add that requirement for an indemnification clause and also require
insurance on the part of the I guess the ... I need a little help here, Chairman.
Forgive me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll call for a recess.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
language.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
(gavel) ...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

Yeah, could we call a recess then we can work out the

Yeah, we'll work with Corporation Counsel.

Recess...

10:25 a.m.
10:35 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, the Public Works and Transportation meeting
is reconvened. After much discussion with the Public Works Department as well
as Corporation Counsel and staff, it is recommended that we defer this item on
this agenda to another meeting. That way we can at least address the, the
concerns of the Members in regards to drainage and have the developer here for
Q&A. And if we're going to have that provision included, we need his input also.
So, if there's no objections, Members, if the motion can be withdrawn.
Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I was just about to ask that.
I think Member Carroll made the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Either that or would you like an amendment to the
motion just to defer that one portion. Would be, it might be a little clean.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we want to defer the ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The whole thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... entire, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I withdraw my motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I withdraw my second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, at this time, the Chair will defer this
item Public Works-16.
ACTION:

DEFER

CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's 10:35 right now. I know we just took a little bit extended
recess but the Chair would like to recess up to 10:45 to reconvene. Recess ...
(gavel) ...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

23

10:37 a.m.
10:48 a.m.

DEDICATION OF ROAD WIDENING LOT FOR IN & RS
LLC SUBDIVISION (HAIKU) (C.C. No. 05-208)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) ... The Public Works and Transportation meeting
is reconvened. Members, the next item on the agenda is PW -23, which is a
dedication of road widening lot for IN & RS LLC Subdivision in Haiku. This
resolution is to accept dedication of a road widening lot for Land Court
Application 960 pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code. At this time,
I'd like to call on the Public Works Director.
MR. ARAKAW A: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item pertains to a proposed dedication of
a road widening lot for the IN & RS Subdivision located in Haiku. The property
is located along Kaupakalua Road near the Five Comers area. The road widening
lot is .06 acre or roughly 2,600 square feet. And in width it's approximately
3 feet. This particular subdivision is a three-lot subdivision, which was granted
final approval back in December 15, 2004. As allowed under Section 18.20.040
of the Code, the subdivider has deferred roadway improvements by completing
requirements of a three lots or less subdivision agreement. The Committee's
review and consideration of the proposed resolution is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Hokama.

Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

Members, any questions?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe for the record for those that may not
understand it. Can you explain the non ... , nonperformance on the improvements.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Basically, what the Code allows at this point, this, this Section
18.20.040 is it allows a subdivider who is subdividing three lots or less into
deferring the roadway improvements for that particular subdivision. The
subdivider would be required to dedicate the roadway lot itself but not, not the
improvements at this point. Under a normal subdivision if it's four lots or more
then we would require the road widening lot plus the applicable improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
improvements be done?

Okay.

So, my next question is when will the

MR. ARAKAWA: Generally, we would call these types of deferral agreements when
there is a County CIP project for that particular road itself. And at this point,
improvements or widening of Kaupakalua Road are not in the six-year CIP. So, I
wouldn't be able to answer your question at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
improvements?

So, wouldn't it be in our interest to require the

MR. ARAKAWA: The, okay, basically, the Code allows for the deferral. I guess I
would defer to Corp Counsel as to whether or not we can require it under that
section of the Code at this point. We, this whole issue of the deferral agreements
has been discussed before, as you know. Weare kind of mulling it over in house
to see how or, you know, how this can be perhaps better addressed. But at this
time, this is what the Code allows the subdivider to do.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Looking at Section 18.20.040 of the Maui
County Code it allows for improvements to existing streets to be deferred for, for
subdivisions containing three or less, three lots or less. I don't think that that
means that we would have to, that the County would have to, that means that it's
empowered to, that Public Works could if it felt it appropriate to defer. I don't
think this is a mandate that they do because the language is may. I would also add
that there's certain, that the subdivider must enter into an agreement to pay the
subdivider's pro rata share of the costs of road improvements for the existing
street. And it would be according to a formula that's, that's done by the
Department, which would take into certain factors that are listed in the Code.
And that would be actual cost, number of feet of roadway, and, and et cetera. But
I don't think that this provision requires the Department to defer. And in, in
certain cases, they might not want to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do we place a lien on the title to ensure compliance?
What do we do to ensure compliance so that nobody forgets what is responsibly
owed the County like affordable housing units?
MR. ARAKA WA: The, the applicant does execute an agreement and it is filed in the
Bureau of Conveyances.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, any time the title or something comes up it would
show?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I have concerns with this area of the County
'cause the thousands of building permits that have been issued over the last five
years and continual deferral of improvements. You know, you keep hearing
Mr. Tavares calling the Vikings, the new Vikings who come and, now look, not
even doing the improvements required to take care our local residents who live in
the area already. What happens, again, yeah, Mr. Director, you mention there's no
plan in the next six years at this point in time under CIP. So, at this point, there's
no even tentative plans to do improvements on Kaupakalua Road which, you
know, I've, I've gone up there kind of recently a lot lately. And, you know, we
make demands of other property owners in other regions to perform in advance. I
think I will not be supporting deferral of improvements in this area for, for a
while, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Johnson.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And because Riki and myself have had this
conversation before and I don't know if it was, I believe it was before
Mr. Arakawa became Director of the Department. But I think that the general
subject of deferral agreements, Mr. Chair, has to be addressed in a separate forum
because right now as Milton is aware with the lower road improvements that
we're looking at and this would be in Honoapiilani in Lahaina. I can give you a
perfect example of the difficulty in trying to collect on deferral agreements. We
have not collected to my knowledge and to Mr. (inaudible) knowledge one dime
from any deferral agreement that has ever existed in Maui County. And it's
because of all these years taking place.
So, I think, although I'm not a member of this Committee, I have worked on the
issue of the deferral agreements intimately for about the last two years. There are
millions just with the deferral agreements that exist, not exclusively for
Honoapiilani or lower Honoapiilani Road, but all of West Maui. There are
deferral agreements that exist that are worth millions of dollars. And I want to
deal with this issue first because even if this came out of Committee, I would not
support another deferral agreement in Maui County unless I'm assured that there
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are bonds issued. Some kind of bonding. If there is some kind of contribution
made at that point in time. So, I would ask respectfully, Mr. Chair, that you defer
this but that you create a separate item specifically addressing deferral
agreements.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any more questions?
If not, the Chair recommending, recommendation is to move forward this
resolution. Can I have a motion from?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo. Any discussion? Seeing none. All
in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, there's four ayes and one opposed. Motion carried.
Members, if there's no objection the Chair would also like to file this
communication.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmemher Carroll, Mateo,
Chair Pontanilla.
Councilmemher Hokama.
None.
None.
None.

Molina.

and

ADOPTION of resolution; and FILING of communication

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to since there's no public
testimony, the Chair would like to close public testimony at this time if there's no
objections.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Public testimony is closed.

24

DEDICATION OF ROAD WIDENING LOTS FOR ARAFILES
SUBDIVISION (C.C. No. 05-209)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next item on our agenda is PW-24 dedicated of
road widening lots for Arafiles Subdivision in Haiku. This resolution will accept
dedication of the road widening lots pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County
Code. Mr. Director.
MR. ARAKA W A: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item pertains to a proposed dedication of
two road widening lots relating to the Arafiles Subdivision located along
Kaupakalua Road between its intersection with West Kuiaha Road and
Kauhikoa Road. Lot 2-B-3 is 796 square feet in area. While lot 2-B-4 contains
460 square feet in area. Both road-widening lots are approximately 3 feet in
width. And as allowed under 18.20.040 of the Code, the subdivider here has also
deferred roadway improvements by completing the requirements of the three lots
or less subdivision agreement. The Committee's review and consideration of the
proposed resolution is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Director. Members, any questions for the
Director? If not, the Chair would recommend that we accept that, the dedication
of road widening lot pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo. Any discussion? All in favor say
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let the record show that four ayes and one no. Members, if
there's no objections, the Chair would also like to recommend the filing of the
County communication on this item.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Carroll, Mateo, Molina,
Chair Pontanilla.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.
None.

and

ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution; and FILING of communication

13

GRANT OF EASEMENT ON COUNTY PROPERTY TO
MOUNTAIN SEAS DEVELOPMENT, LTD. (MAKENA) (C.C.
No. 05-137)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The final item on our agenda this morning is PW-13. Grant of
easement on County property to Mountain Seas Development, Limited, in
Makena. This resolution will authorize the granting of a non-exclusive easement
on County of Maui real property to Mountain Seas Development, Limited, for
underground private water system purposes. Mr. Director.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is, this item pertains to a resolution
relating to the proposed granting of a non-exclusive easement in County real
property to Mountain Seas Development, Limited, for an underground private
wastewater system purpose. Mountain Seas Development would construct an
underground sewer force main from their property within the
Makena-Keoneoio Road right of way to a private sewer pump station within the
nearby Nahale 0 Makena Development. The sewer easement within the
Makena-Keoneoio Road encompasses 4,538 square feet.
From the
Nahale 0 Makena Development a private sewer force main extends within
Makena-Keoneoio Road to a sewer manhole. And from there the effluent flows
to the County Pump Station 16, which is located near the Makena Surf
development. The non-exclusive easement was granted by the County Council to
Ulupalakua Ranch in 2002. And the Ranch subsequently conveyed the property
to Mountain Seas Development. So, when the County then sought to record the,
the grant of easement, it was rejected by the Bureau of Conveyances because
Ulupalakua Ranch no longer owned the property. Thus the grant of easement is
being reprocessed in favor of the current landowner Mountain Seas Development,
Limited. The Committee's review and consideration of this proposed resolution is
respectfully requested.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, if there's no objections, we do have in
our audience Mr. Earl Stoner who represents the Mountain Seas Development. At
this time, the Chair, with no objections, I would like to call Mr. Stoner to provide
us with more information.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Stoner.
MR. STONER: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. My name is
Earl Stoner. I was the original agent for Ulupalakua Ranch on this easement
matter and am also representing Mountain Seas Development because they are,
they're, their primary members are out of state at this time. I'm here primarily to
answer questions, but I did want to raise one point 'cause I've been listening to the
Committee proceedings, and it seems like the Committee seems, excuse me,
seems to be very interested in efficiency of operation. I'd like to point out that
this matter was approved by the entire Council in 2002-2003 Fiscal Year and
presented to the Mayor for signature. And the Mayor's signature appeared very
shortly after approval by the Committee and the entire Council second reading.
For some reason, this... (CHANGE TAPE) . .. Bureau of Conveyance or to the
Registrar's Office at the Land Court for a period of four and one-half months. I
know that this is not a Council responsibility but it seems to me that items of
import of this type, and you hear most of the easement items and you're hearing
road widening things today in many cases which will result in recordable
documents either on Land Court parcels or on regular system parcels. I think
they're, I think it's extremely important and it's contingent on somebody in the
County, I'm assuming a registration entity but I'm not, or administration entity but
I'm not certain how that procedure goes. But this happens to be the first of two
items, which have been lost on their way to recordation for major easements,
which affected County facilities. And I, if there's some way to speed this process
up I think it should be considered or passed on by the Council to whomever in the
Administration is responsible for it. I personally disagree with the decision to
rehear this matter since the easement document actually provided for signs and
successors to this easement. And the, the actual transfer of title only occurred
approximately a week and a half prior to this matter being provided by part of the
easement document being provided to the Registrar's Office for recordation. And,
you know, unfortunately, we're wasting your time and our time as well to go
through this whole thing again when it was done properly in the first place. But
I'll be very happy to answer any questions with respect to the easement both its
current situation and prior action if anybody has any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Stoner. Any questions for Mr. Stoner this
morning?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thanks, Mr. Stoner, for being here. I supported the
original request. Just so that we can be updated since we have your presence. All
construction has been completed and whatever restoration it needed to be up to
standards for the Department to be satisfied has already been done and
completed?
MR. STONER: That is correct. It was completed actually very shortly after the
easement was granted originally. There was, there was and remains a small
cottage on the property approximately 500 square foot guest cottage type of
building which had a cesspool as its service. And there was a concern on our part
as well as the part, well, now there's, there's since been Federal concern regarding
cesspools in these areas. But we were concerned that this be hooked up to the
sewer system at the earliest possible date. Consequently, as soon as the easement
was granted, construction began by Goodfellow Brothers. The improvements
were made in the entire pump system as well as the lines to the other pump
system which goes to the County station on the corner of Makena-Keoneoio and
Makena-Alanui Roads was constructed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Stoner. Mr. Director, would you
concur with Mr. Stoner's comments the Department is satisfied with whatever
requirements regarding construction and post construction standards?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for either
Mr. Stoner or Mr. Arakawa? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, thank you for being here. I just wanted to check
with you the Mountain Seas Development, Limited, because it's listed as a Texas
Limited Partnership are you a member of the partnership?
MR. STONER: No, I am not. I'm simply a representative of Mr. and Mrs. Sammons
who are the principals.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And they just are residents in the area. It's not
a corporation that owns this.
MR. STONER: I believe it's a, it's a corporate entity that which they use as their
development operation. They own several properties in the Makena-Wailea area.
And this happens just to be one of several that they do own.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, they're, they're an investment corporation.
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MR. STONER: An investor they also are part time residents of MauL They're here
approximately 6 months out of the year on average.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But it is just simply just these two individuals
then that are ...
MR. STONER: To the best of my knowledge, yes. I'm personally acquainted with both
of them and I'm not aware of any other members in this. It's not a large corporate
entity that is doing development. They actually intend to construct a residence on
this site at some point is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And so, but they, they or the corporation will
then be purchasing the coverage that's required underneath this document, the
liability coverage.
MR. STONER: If there is, if there is liability coverage requirements on this easement, it
is either, I believe it is presently in effect. Because Ulupalakua Ranch was the
original entity and we've, we've bound it and they presently have insurance that
binds that liability for that area and any easements that are granted either by the
County or other entities to them. So that that insurance should be in effect right
now. It would be no, because the sewage is operational. It's been operating since
2003. You had to have, you couldn't take the sewage out of the, the cottage and
pump it into the station without covering that area. So that coverage, coverage
has been seamless since that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because oftentimes when these come before
us usually there's some evidence of insurance that's provided so that at least the
current existing coverage there would be no lapse in coverage 'cause I worked in
insurance. I know that sometimes the best intentions of individuals, you know,
fail when there's no continuity of coverage.
MR. STONER: No, the continuity, we were concerned about the continuity of coverage
as the former landowner. As I said I was the agent of Ulupalakua Ranch during
that and a part owner of the property. And consequently we were concerned that
that coverage be seamless as well. And, and I can assure you that it was then in
effect and remains in effect at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, any more questions
for Mr. Stoner or Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Recommendations, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Stoner.
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MR. STONER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time, the Chair would recommend approval of Public
Works Item No. 13 and the filing of the communication.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Molina, second by Member Carroll. Any
discussion? All in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

ACTION:

Councilmemher Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

ADOPTION of resolution; and FILING of communication

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, that concludes our agenda for this morning. Any
announcements other than Mr. Carroll's Land Use Committee meeting at 1:30? If
not, thank you very much. Meeting adjourned.
ADJOURNED:

11:10 a.m.
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